EXCERPT MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 22, 2015 WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING

Case No.: PUD2014-00003 - Bobby and Kimberly Stroupe (owners/applicants) Abbott
Land Survey, c/o Chad Abbott (agent) request a Planned Umt Development on 21 acres

A tract of land lying in the North half of Section 34,
of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Sedgwick County,
described as: Beginning at the North Quarter Co
along the North line of sa1d Section a distance 0

‘ship 28 South, Range 3 West
, being more particularly
d Section 34 and going easterly

Northerly a
ty a distance of
1o the North

Quarter corner of said §
Section 333.5 feet; thence §.. ; ect for a point of beginning; thence
continuing S 1°06'26" W, : . '00" W, 1162.40 feet; thence N
00" E, 834 34 feet; thence N 0°58'31" E, 274.44
to the point of beginning,

to change the RR Rural Residential (RR) zoned 21-
(PUD #44). The proposed PUD includes the

ilar activities. The applicants’ propose a maximum
s will be scheduled on an as need basis, 30 times a
Weekly basis. The facility will not be open to the general pubhc The
of alcohohc 11quor or cereal malt beverages (drinks) on the site is an

i uses, permitted by right or as a Conditional Use that would
d as described. The RR zoning district list no defined uses, permitted by

2 would permit the described activities in the county, The PUD zoning district
strict that is intended to encourage innovative land planning and design.
sermitted within the PUD zoning district, provided that it is consistent with the
purposes of the UZC and the approved PUD plan. The PUD is proposed to be developed into
two phases, as stated on the PUD

Page 1 of 16



Currently the site is developed with the applicants’ single-family residence, an accessory
building to the residence, a wood shed and an accessory building (events building) that will be
used for the PUD’s activities. As noted on the PUD, the approximately 2,706.34-square foot
events building will be used for the options of: indoor events, the cooking and serving of food
for the all events, and live music or DJ music for dances for the events. The events building also
has restrooms per the Sedgwick County Code. A gravel parking lot is shown on the west side of
the events building as is paved (asphalt) handicap parking. An ehelosed trash receptacle area is
shown on the east side of the event building.

g any one event, Sedgwick
sthe events building.
will not have to be
ption of drinks

Although the applicants propose a maximum of 150 peop]
County Fire has established a maximum occupancy of ,
Fire’s maximum occupancy is critical because it mea e events bl
sprinkled for fire prevention. The Fire Code prohibits the serving and
inside the events building, unless less than 100 attend an event.

yards from the PUD’s north, south and eas
security may be provided. The PUD propo

he applicants have proposed that
wooded walking paths with soft
landscape buffer and 25-foot building
ts as needed for the events (not for

with music off by 7:30 p.m; Friday — Saturday 8
d; on Sunday 8 a.m. to 7 p.m. with music off by

exception.
large tract s
the site), 19

1ts way to its joining the Ninnescah River located two-miles south
1s of timber along both sides of the Clearwater, including that
,ibcated along and through the PUD’s west and south sides and
31rd Street South. The PUD’s east side is mostly open. The exceptlon 0

E) #306, located one-mile south of the subject site, on the southeast corner
263rd Street West. The 119.53-acre multl event venue PUD #36 pernnts

for this gen: ca and has fewer proposed uses than the established PUD #36.

CASE HISTORY: The RR zoned subject site not platted and there is no evidence of past
zoning activity. Planning has received numerous calls not in favor of the requested zoning.
Their concerns include, but are not limited to: traffic, the number of people allowed per event,

Page 2 of 16



drainage, loud music, unruly behavior, the availability of liquor and beer and disruption to the
rural character of the area.

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USE:

NORTH: RR 63%" Street South, agricultural fields, Clearwater Creek, a farmstead,
SOUTH: RR Large tract & platted single-family idences, agricultural fields,
farmsteads, Clearwater Creek
EAST: RR Agricultural fields, large tract single-fam idences, farmsteads
residences, agricultural fields

WEST: RR Clearwater Creek, a large tract single

PUBLIC SERVICES: There is no sewer available to 'te is located in Rural

Water Dlstnct #4, Access to the site i 1s off of 63rd Str:

meet all standards for construction of buildin

ctures on the site, per the County Engineer
and Code Enforcement. Both the maintenan i

3™ Street South and the drainage of

Wichita Functional Land Use Guide”
identifies this area as “rural.” The rural
ntended to accommodate agricultural

of the “Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensw
classification is outside of any c1ty S growth area

Sedgwwk County and predom: sidential dev opment. The RR zoning district
is appropriate for the rural class: i roposes uses not allowed in the RR zoning
district. A PUD is intended to:

ility that sometimes results from strict application
gned primarily for individual lots. The proposed

e property whose use, an event venue that permits
¢ for dancing, is commercial. However the PUD

of zonin

nities. All of the current development and future development is
the PUD’s 21-acres, which provides ample open space. The location of

ban design and environmentally sensitive development by
5 elopment to take advantage of special site characterlstlcs locations and

on and its intent to provide a limited number of events that will benefit
1 character. The proposed PUD event venue may be the most rurally
ts type, with the exception of the previously noted multi-event venue PUD

ng deviations from certain zoning standards that would otherwise apply if not
y to the general spirit and intent of this Code. The PUD allows mixed uses
without inappropriate LC spot zoning and Conditional Uses. The proposed PUD is
not the first in the area, as the multi-event venue PUD #36 located one-mile south of
the subject site.

Page 3 of 16



RECOMMENDATION: The ability of an individual property owner to enjoy the use of their
property impacts not only that individual property owner but their neighbors and the greater area.
The applicants’ believe that the proposed PUD’s location in rural Sedgwick County enhances the
PUD’s and its intent to provide a unique events venue. The intent of the proposed provisions of
the PUD, including limiting the availability of the PUD, is an attempt to retain the area’s rural
character and thus minimize the possibility of it degrading the oring properties and the
area. The approximately 119-acre multi-venue PUD #36 is log¢ated a mile south of the proposed

Based upon information available prior to the public he 1.subsequent conversations
between Planning, the applicants and their agent have a : > additional development
. subject to platting

(1) As listed in under General; Allow RR
(2) As listed in under General in Comm ; 17
available (7) days a week. Events ate avai of rent: Monday ~ Thursday, 8 a.m. to 8
p.m. with music off by 7:30 p.m - '
10:30 p.m. and; on Sunday 8 am. to 7 p.in:
(3) Add under General; The site shall be develc
(4) Add under General; Maximum building hei
Maximum building coverage shall be 35%
(5) General Provision #5, a: 1 i
minimize light trespass ar
source 1s not visible frOm

usic off by 6:30 p.m.
er the approved PUD.

ng shall be per Code for a maximum of 150 people
Sedgwick County, including having paved handicap

n #18 revise to add; Tents are available for events as approved by

Code and will not be used for camping.

sion #20 revise to add; Portable toilets are permitted as needed and as

pproved by the MABCD, per event.

(1 ovision #21 revise to; The facility shall not be affiliated with any Class A or

bs, as defined the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code

(14) Take Gut General Provision #22

{15) Add to General Provisions; Solid screening of trash receptacles and outdoor mechanical
equipment for heating and air and equipment storage shall be per the Wichita-Sedgwick

Page 4 of 16



County Unified Zoning Code. Trash receptacle shall be located as shown on the
approved PUD.

This recommendation is based on the following findings:

is RR zoned unincorporated
ption. Agricultural fields
d large tract single-family
in 1972 (west of the site), 1934
d 2011 (south of the site).

1) The zoning, uses and character of the surrounding area:

section of Sedgwick County is rural in charter, with one;
are the areas dominate feature, with scattered farmst
residences. The closet residences/farmsteads were b
(north of the site), 1976 (east of the site) and 2004

located south of the site. The Clearwater Creek run : through and along the
PUD and the abutting properties on its wa River located

two-miles south of the subject site. The ’ '
Clearwater, including that portion of th: arwater that is located along and through the

s 63" Street South Thc PUD’s

st corner of 71% Street South and 263™
#36 permits a campground, a bed and
, retail, multi-family residential
11D would not be the first for this

Street West. The multi-venue 119 53-acre
breakfast, a convention center, community asst
along with numerous other, act1v1tles The requ
general area and has few

g ¢ uses to which it has been restricted: The site
griculture uses and large lot residential uses. The
* a single-family residence or agriculture. The site

2) The suitability of the subj :
is zoned RR, which primari
site could be continue to b

ns will detrimentally affect nearby property: The
oor weddings, family reunions or similar
naximum of 150 persons for these events. These
uied on an as need basis, 30 times a year, and not repeated on a

¢ facility will not be open to the general public. The serving and
coholic liquor or cereal malt beverages (drinks) on the site is an option
iusic or DJ music for dances for the events are also options, as is

¢t on an area, which could increase the presence of Law Enforcement.
5 loud can degrade a neighborhood. The proposed provisions of the PUD
sen that possibility of the need for more policing (providing security) in
the intrusion of loud music (cannot be heard on the neighboring

e neighboring properties.

- ized Comprehensive Plan
and poimes The “2030 Wichita Functional Land Use Guide” of the “Wichita-Sedgwick
County Comprehensive Plan” identifies this area as “rural.” The rural classification is
outside of any city’s growth area and is intended to accommodate agricultural uses, rural
based uses that are no more offensive than those agricultural uses commonly found in

Page S of 16



Sedgwick County and predominately large lot residential development. The RR zoning
district is appropriate for the rural classification.

The PUD zoning district is a special zoning district that is intended to encourage
innovative land planning and design. Any use may be permitted within the PUD zoning
district, provided that it is consistent with the purposes of the UZC and the approved
PUD plan. The PUD proposes uses not allowed in the RR zoning district. The requested
PUD would not be the first multi-event venue for this al area. PUD #36 is located a
mile south of the site and has more approved uses. P .

5) Impact of the proposed development on com

The impact of traffic
generated by the PUD on 63rd Street West c

The maintenance and

and consumption of alcoholic liquor
possible negative impact on an are
Enforcement. Enforcement could be
Construction Department’s (MAP
Code prohibiting the serving a
especially during the weekend whe

He said he has received numerous
surrounding properties and the rur

ined that the tents would be used to provide shade or shelter for weather
d to eat outside. He said total attendance at events, whether inside or
¢ mentioned that everything in the area was zoned Rural Residential

FOSTER asked about the intent of the 50-foot landscape barrier versus a landscape buffer.

Page 6 0of 16



LONGNECKER said a landscape buffer would be a more appropriate term and added that the
applicants would like walking paths and a gazebo located within the landscaping buffer.

FOSTER asked about the 25-foot building setback.

LONGNECKER said there was a 25-foot building setback located WIthln the 50-foot landscape

buffer.

FOSTER asked staff to explain the existing conditions wit d to setbacks.
LONGNECKER said the idea was to create more spac tianyoutdoor activities and the
property line. He said the applicant wanted to take ad¥ e r.areas on the property

FOSTER referred to a letter from a neighbor
allows 99 people at the venue.

LONGNECKER noted in the Staff Repo:
higher occupancy than 150 people; however, ¢
means a different standard is applied that dictate
and provided alcohol, than the bulldlng needs to ha
commented that a report was re
representative was also prese

MITCHELL asked about the flood

LONGNECKER commented that the
He said he would let thea

Iplain was provided by the agent for the applicant.
ccuracy of that information.

received regarding ti
‘been built for comm

ilding permit is second hand. He said he understands the building has
1 use including bathrooms per County Code and a meter hook up for
iter District #4.

days per

LONGNECKER clarified that meant 30 total days total. He said that clarifying language could
be added.

Page7of 16



CHAD ABBOTT, ABBOTT LAND SURVEY, 520 SOUTH HOLLAND AGENT FOR
THE APPLICANT said they are in agreement with the revised language in the Staff Report and
verbal revisions made by Planning Staff at this meeting. He said the applicant did a letter map
amendment on the Floodplain and is using the same Base Flood Elevation (BFE) as determined
by the division of Water Resources. He added that the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) has approved that. He said there will be no music or b dg outside, He said this is an

no outside speakers.

ABBOTT gave a brief background stating that the appl

horse™ so to speak.

ABBOTT said the property is very well su
applicant’s knew they wanted a property £6
a property that was insulated from the neig
weddings. He said there is about 300 feet of woog
property and there are also topography features that add
the area. He said they believe this i

ding venue so they were looking for
‘so the nelghbors wouldn’t dlsturb the

omplaints whatsoever about sound, lighting or
er property was Prairie Pines on N. Tyler Road
s. He also noted there was much less natural

D to govern the proposed use of the facility so it
borhood. He sald 273" Street is a nlce paved road

01 WEST 63" STREET SOUTH said they pulled a residential
‘construct a barn; however, they asked to build to commercial. She
‘mentioned getting the FUD after they had already built. She said they asked the neighbors and
ere dld not appear to be any concerns at that time. She said there is triple insulation in the bamn
ise i She said this business is a retirement for their family; that her husband
* 30 years. She said she has been in the wedding industry as a

very fairytale wedding. She said the celebration after the ceremony at the event center is not
their priority. She also mentioned that they would be very selective as to who would be on the

property.

Page 8 of 16



MITCHELL asked if the building was above the Floodplain.
ABBOTT responded it is.

RICHARDSON asked who determines if water and sewer is adequate He also asked about the
sewage system.

d sewer is adequate. He
dded that there was also a
eptic system appropriately

ABBOTT responded Sedgwick County Code determines if w

said there are two restrooms on the interior of the buildin
provision for temporary portable toilets. He said sewage
sized for the facility.

STROUPE said they have been in contact with staff.as far as 51zmg oft tic system and
have not hidden what they planned to do with th i
mentioned installation of a new electrical tran
conditioning the building. She said everythi as installed-according to County Code per the

MABCD. She added that Bud Lett had b

FOSTER confirmed the condition for the venue io, en only 30 days per year.
STROUPE responded yes, that was correct.

FOSTER asked if an architec
builder.

STROUPE said they worked with a
Abbott assisted with everything on t

T SOUTH said he lives adjacent to the west of
L as a residential permit and states on it non-

as lived within three miles of this site his entire life. He said they
roperty four years ago for the seclusion, abundant wildlife and low

ine which is more like 50 to 75 feet. He commented that they
clates because the property line does not match up with what is

rould move the property line another 30 foot to the east. He said one

es and their deed is showing10.22 acres. He said if this proposal were

- Wichita it would be considered a nightclub because of the alcohol and

ires a 200-foot setback from the closest residential property. He said

Page 9 of 16



PAULY referred to Golden Rule #3 with regard to detrimental affects to nearby property. He
said right now approximately 10 vehicles a day travel down 63 Street. He said this facility will
greatly increase the amount of traffic and noted that there were three unmarked intersections
nearby, the closest being 1 % miles away. He said Camp Hyde has been in existence since 1952
and was there before any residences came into the area. He added that alcohol is not allowed on
Camp Hyde property because of insurance requirements. He said Eberly Farms has been in
existence since 1962 and it is approximately 600 feet from the closest residence and 400 feet

PAULY commented that on the PUD applicatio . \aximum amount

are advertising for up to 200 people. He
center of the creek looking directly east

ures of the area including from the
building, pot holes along 63" Street

wildlife. He referred to a map encompassing zippm
which i isa dralnage basin to Clear Creck. He conc

paths are already cut through the area. He said there will be people all over
¢ and drinking. He asked how the applicant proposes to secure the whole area.
He said the entire area is in the 100-year Floodplain and said the entire floods and although

the applicant has not experienced it, everything will be gone when it floods because the creek
moves fast and comes up in a hurry. He said if someone comes onto his property and gets hurt,
he will be liable for it.

Page 10 of 16



HINE said he is also concerned about how this zone change will affect the value of his property.
He asked if the zoning change is allowed what else can go in there, light commercial and other
uses. He said if the applicant wants to maintain timberline, he suggested a conservation
easement. He mentioned the 30 venues and drinking and asked who was going to enforce that.
He concluded by saying that the YMCA Camp Hyde is a non-profit orgamzatlon for children.

He said a for profit business in this area isn’t going to benefit any-of the neighbors, it is going to
benefit the applicant. He said everyone he has approached abett this within a 5 mile radius is
opposed to it. He said he also had 9 Protest Petitions to tu posing the rezoing action. He
said this is not a good setting for this venue and mentione ct on the environment,
wildlife and peace and quiet of the area. He said the ar! 10t even 200 feet from his
house and as a comparison, he said he can hear his neighbor 1 500 e e south having coffee
in the morning. :

EVERETT DILLON, 25229 WEST 63" ST}
proposed area and has several major concern

is area is not suitable for any kind of
d has seen water over the mail box by
to several pictures showing the depth
of the water in the area three feet above the surface ofithe bridge. He commented that he didn’t

doesn’t fit in with the surrounding neighbo
development. He said he has lived in the a

‘boarding élong 263™ Street. He said additional
e. He said the WEB page mentioned gravel
will get muddy and full of ruts when it rains, and

the bridge in front of the property an:
traffic is only gomg to make that situat
drives but there is just:

more traffic is jus

th alcohol consumption at the venue and the

To give the speaker one additional minute,

oved, FOSTER seconded the motion and it carried (8-1).

ILL.ON said thi | encourage drinking and driving in the area which could cause problems
ty. He asked who is going to control that. He said he and his neighbors
oved out there to get away from that sort of thing. He concluded by asking who wants to live

a business.

speaker how he felt about the applicant only operating 30 days out of the
year.

DILLON asked who was going to enforce that condition. He said there is no guarantee and no
one is going to enforce any of the conditions.

Page 11 of 16



JIM PAULY, 22601 WEST 71* STREET SOUTH said he lives 2 ¥ miles of east of the
property. He said he wanted to emphasis that he doesn’t think the flooding issue in the area can
be under estimated. He said the applicants are fairly new to the area but he has lived there 63
years (his entire life). He said the weather is very unpredictable and a flood will occur again. He
said unfortunately a lot of improvements and facilities that the applicant has made will go down
the creek because it is unpreventable.

JANIS PAULY, 22601 WEST 71* STREET SOUTH provided a hand out referencing the

Golden Rules as they apply to the application.

Factor 1 — she said the immediate area is made up of th
farmsteads; agricultural fields; and a waterway, Cle
residences have been in existence for over 30 years

tcatial homes, including two
er Creek. Shie sdid ten of those thirteen

as well as increased traffic flow will disrupt
d the propesal that “no music will be heard by

Factor 2 — she said music and entertainment ve;
the peaceful and quiet nature of the area. Sh

miles west) music from events held at

at Clonmen (2 2 miles east), music from 2
1e Law Enforcement shooting Range

Lake Afton (4 Y2 miles noﬂhwest) and the

rushing waters. She said citing ¢
added that comparing a not for p
not a true comparison. She said Camp
thoroughfares. She said its primary
host a few other familyre i

bordered on two sides by paved major
ovide day camp-style child care on weekdays and

She said the paths in the wooded areas are perfect
and one errant cigarette can quickly ignite dry

> and, if so, at what point was the agricultural shed building permit
ation for a commercial venue building permit submitted and issued. She

Page 12 of 16



Factor 7 ~ heavy traffic on rural roads can make roads impassable and increased traffic will

cause added costs and roadway maintenance. She also asked about trash and the smell of
leftover food enticing rodents into the area. She asked about sewage disposal and if the facility
will be able to contain waste materials during a flood. She asked if the back areas of the property
were accessible to fire trucks in case of a fire, or EMT’s and what was the response time. She
said it says security will be provided; however, law enforcement response time in rural areas
varies greatly. '

Factor 8 — the area residents are opposed to the
was already an established entity when the are:
why new landowners should be allowed to ¢

idential home sites were chosm She asked
and disrupt the peace and quiet of this rural

EST said he resides directly south of
what they could afford in the area
per year is almost every weekend.
'events every year. He said they

Camp Hyde and moved therel0 years ago becaus
which they very quickly found out why. He said 30 ev
He said they deal with events all. -through the week as w

and adults throwing rocks at horses o
2012 and they were without water for
burned up both of his:well
directly beside the i

ks. He said when Camp Hyde drained the ponds it
this application personal although he does not live
are in place to protect the community. He said
rort to change the zoning, not a petition not to

, which was verified by the Division of Water Resources. He said
eveloped base flood elevations based on the new data that would
plain Maps. He said the applicant did a letter map amendment
ion to FEMA and the application was approved. He said there are some
the property that have not been washed away by flood waters.

nded when they looked at the property they went to a meeting where staff told
them they would have to do a PUD and rezoning and that would be part of the process. She said
she misunderstood at what place that should be done. She said there was a miscommunication
and they did the process out of order, which was their mistake.

Page 13 of 16



RAMSEY said he drove out to the property and commented that it is beautiful land. He asked
with all the land located to the east, why did they build so close to the property line.

STROUPE said they built at that location because of the flood zone, the septic system and
where it should go according to MABCD staff (Kelly Dixon) and also where the connection for
rural water would come in. She said further north the elevatio s down and there might be
the possibility of flooding. She said they built where they felt s a good distance from
neighbors to the west, north and south.

RAMSLEY commented that there didn’t appear to be pa
going to park in the middle of a field.

cople unless they were

STROUPE said they intend to have as small we ' gs as possible and adde

on to the parking lot.

it-they could add

RAMSEY asked how the 30 events per umption provisions are enforced.

STROUPE commented that alcohol will not b
having a security guard on site so they won’t hav
and her husband. She said a licensed beverage cate

very event. She said they plan on
for law enforcement, along with her
serve at any events that have alcohol.

al business ancillary to the residence.

.meant a home occupation, and said no, that is why

il under the home occupation category.

cture located in the southwest area within 25 feet of the adjacent
ple would congregate for wedding ceremonies.

-adracent property. He said the gazebo was located along the walking trail but that
was not where'the ceremonies would be performed.

Page 14 of 16



STROUPE commented that there is an electric fence on the property to the south. She said they
will be planting trees in front of that because it is very visible because it is white. She
commented that safety is their number one issue and added that one of their grandchildren also
lives on the property.

WARREN said he was in favor of this request and wanted to gi
commented that he had ex parte communication in the way of a
Hiner. He said his family has a farm south and east of Derby.
they have used hundreds of times. He said they don’t rent i
but they allow other organizations to use it free of charge.
the surrounding residents but it has been their experien
problems or issues brought up at this meeting. He sa
not like standing on the sidelines of a football game witl
like a dinner

party with a small din that is not disturbing, H
problems of that nature. He mentioned that at
experienced the same fears from surroundi
also had a gazebo along a creek and whe
and that is part and parce] of building in that'le:
hours per event is a total of 150 hours per year ou
believe the fears are real or that the surrounding pro
of their property or enjoyment of their properties.

his reasons. In addition, he
fnail from Brad and Randy
uilt a barn in the 1980°s that
use it is for use by their family
he understands the fears of
y:have not seen any of the

oise is a min: ation because this is

i'creek there is going to be flooding
e said 30 events per year, times five
0 hours per year. He said he does not
ners are going to see a loss of value

to get the PUD and change the zoning. He said wouldn’t staff have
needed to do the zoning first.

ired if they want to proceed with an idea. He said County
f were present to provide advice and answer questions they asked. He
dual to follow-up and move ahead with the project.

not in the Development Review meeting,

RICHARDSGN asked about permits in other zoning districts for portable restrooms and if the
applicant would be required to get a permit each time portable restrooms are used.

Page 15 of 16



LONGNECKER said MABCD issues permits for portable restrooms and a new permit would
need to be issued each time they are used.

RICHARDSON said using portable restrooms was part of staff’s recommendation.

STROUPE said portable restrooms would not be used.

LONGNECKER stated that the request for portable restroom
that can be removed if that is what the Commissions desi

on the application; however,

FOSTER mentioned using a 50-foot landscape buffer

d referred to the
photographs that show that during winter time you ¢ i

motion to approve the application.

FOSTER suggested that.

: ald he doesn’t feel he can support this particular
as one of the neighbors. He said someone can
v it is there, but to put this facility in after the fact

“we’ll build it and get perrmsswn lat
item and said he WO ldbe

Page 16 of 16



